ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 7, 2002
8:08 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative John Coghill, Chair
Representati ve Jeannette Janes
Representati ve Hugh Fate
Representative Gary Stevens
Representati ve Peggy W1 son
Representative Harry Crawford
Representati ve Joe Hayes

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 213
"An Act relating to initiative and referendum petitions; and
providing for an effective date."

- MOVED HB 213 OQUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 25
Proposing an anendnent to the Constitution of the State of
Al aska relating to initiative and referendum petitions.

- MOVED HIR 25 OQUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 314

"An Act relating to service in the peace corps as an allowable
absence fromthe state for purposes of eligibility for permanent
fund dividends; and providing for an effective date.”

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS ACTI ON
BILL: HB 213

SHORT TI TLE: | NI TI ATl VE/ REFERENDUM PETI Tl ONS
SPONSOR( S): REPRESENTATI VE('S) W LLI ANV

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- February 7, 2002



Jrn-Dat e
03/ 26/ 01

03/ 26/ 01
04/ 24/ 01
04/ 24/ 01
04/ 26/ 01
04/ 26/ 01
04/ 26/ 01
04/ 26/ 01
04/ 28/ 01
04/ 28/ 01
02/ 07/ 02

Jrn- Page
0729

0729

1257

BILL: HIR 25

SHORT TI TLE: CONST AM
SPONSOR( S) :

Jrn-Dat e
03/ 26/ 01

03/ 26/ 01
04/ 24/ 01
04/ 24/ 01
04/ 26/ 01
04/ 26/ 01
04/ 26/ 01
04/ 26/ 01
04/ 28/ 01
04/ 28/ 01
02/ 07/ 02

~

IITTITIITT 3

Action
READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS
STA, JUD, FIN
STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 102
Bill Postponed
STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102
Heard & Held
M NUTE( STA)
COSPONSOR('S) : W LSON
STA AT 9: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102
<Bi | | Post poned>
STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102

I NI TI ATI VE/ REFERENDUM PETI TI ONS

REPRESENTATI VE( S) W LLI AVS

Jrn- Page
0728

0728

1256

BILL: HB 314

~—

IITTITIITIT 3

Action
READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS
STA, JUD, FIN
STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102
Bi || Post poned
STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102
Schedul ed But Not Heard
M NUTE( STA)
COSPONSOR(S): W LSON
STA AT 9: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102
<Bi | | Post poned>
STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102

SHORT TI TLE: PFD ELI G BI LI TY FOR PEACE CORP VOLUNTEERS
REPRESENTATI VE( S) MCGQUI RE, DAVI ES

SPONSOR( S) :

Jrn-Dat e
01/ 14/ 02
01/ 14/ 02

01/ 14/ 02
01/ 28/ 02

02/ 07/ 02

Jrn- Page
1957
1957

1957
2086

W TNESS REG STER

HOUSE STA COW TTEE

T Iz 23

Action
PREFI LE RELEASED 1/11/02
READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS
STA, FIN
JO NT PRI ME SPONSOR ADDED
DAVI ES
STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102

February 7, 2002



RANDY RUARO, St aff

to Representative WlliamK "Bill" WIIlians

Al aska State Legislature

Capi tol Building, Room 515

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of Representative
Wl lians, sponsor of HB 213 and HIR 25.

SUSAN SCHRADER, Conservation Advocate

Al aska Conservation Voters

PO Box 22151

Juneau, Al aska 99802

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Spoke in opposition to HB 213 [and HIR 25].

RANDY REUDRI CH

1515 West 13t h Avenue

Anchor age, Al aska 99501

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 213.

GAI L FENUM Al, El ection Program Speci al i st

Central Ofice

Di vi sion of Elections

O fice of the Lieutenant Governor

PO Box 110017

Juneau, Al aska 99811-0017

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions on HB 213 and HIR 25.

DAVI D MOORE, Director

United Canpus Mnistry (UCM

Uni versity of Al aska, Fairbanks

4042 Dunl ap

Fai r banks, Al aska 99709

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of 26 Peace Corps
volunteers from Alaska, in particular, Denny and Lisa Wlls,
regardi ng HB 314.

FRANCI S MCLAUGHLI N, Peace Corps Vol unt eer

1167 Park Drive

Fai r banks, Al aska 99709

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 314.
ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 02-7, SIDE A
Number 0001

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- February 7, 2002



CHAIR JOHN COGHI LL called the House State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:08 a.m Representati ves Janes,
Fate, Crawford, and Coghill were present at the call to order
Representatives Stevens, WIson, and Hayes arrived as the
meeting was in progress.

HB 213-1 NI Tl ATI VE/ REFERENDUM PETI Tl ONS

[ Cont ai ns di scussion pertaining to HIR 25]
Nunmber 0042
CHAI R COGHI LL announced the first order of business, HOUSE BILL

NO. 213, "An Act relating to initiative and referendum
petitions; and providing for an effective date.”

Nunber 0136

RANDY RUARO Staff to Representative Wlliam K. "Bill" WIIians,
Al aska State Legislature, presented HB 213 on behalf of the
sponsor, Representative WIIians. He told the conmmttee the
proposed legislation wuld require the following change

regarding the initiative process: that signatures of 7 percent
of those who voted in the preceding general election in 30 of
the 40 House districts nust be obtained to get an initiative on
the ballot. The requirenment would guarantee that before a
statewide initiative is on the ballot, there is sone mjority
showi ng of statew de support, which he said the sponsor believes
is good public policy.

MR. RUARO addressed conments in opposition, fromthe last public
heari ng. The first was that the [proposed |egislation] would
destroy the initiative process. He said the sponsor disagrees
and notes that out of 23 states that do have the initiative
process, the clear majority have adopted sone form of geographic

signature requirement simlar to those in [HB 213]. He noted
that the sponsor believes that Al aska should join Arkansas,
Fl ori da, | daho, Mai ne, Massachusetts, M ssouri , Mont ana,
Nebraska, Nevada, OChio, Utah, and Woming in adopting "simlar"
requirenents. M. Ruaro noted that the Washington State
Legislature is <considering legislation to inpose geographic
requirenents, and if both Washington and Al aska enact

| egislation, only 8 out of the 23 states with the initiative
process woul dn't have some type of geographic requirenent.

MR. RUARO, regarding a second conment in opposition which stated
that the legislation wuld take away the initiative process from

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- February 7, 2002



the average individual, said the sponsor disagrees and notes
that whether an initiative drive is successful or not depends
nore on the subject matter of the initiative than the wealth, or
| ack of wealth, of its sponsor; an initiative that people are
interested in will gather support. He also noted that nany
House districts are conpact in urban areas, so initiative
sponsors could satisfy a large part of the [proposed]
requi renent by focusing on those areas, "but just not focusing
solely on those areas.™

MR. RUARO reported that the nunber of initiatives nmaking it to

the ballot has increased by 100 percent. He nentioned a
conparison of the 1980-1989 period to the 1990-2000 period, and
he added that there will probably be four initiatives on this

year's ball ot.

Number 0460

MR. RUARO referred to the last columm of a one-page spreadsheet
[included in the commttee packet and entitled, "Status of
Active Petitions: 2002 Election"], which shows the average
nunber of signatures per nonth that sponsors were able to gather
for upcomng initiatives that will be on a ballot. In the case
of the [All-Alaskan] Gasline initiative, he noted, the total
signatures reached 10,500 per nonth. Only 28,782 tota
signatures are required to get an initiative on the ballot, he
poi nted out; therefore, "it appears that initiative sponsors are

able to gather pretty significant anounts of signatures in a
rapid anount of tine."

MR. RUARO concl uded that before the [proposed] |egislation would
becone effective, it would have to be approved by the voters.
He comented, "It seens a bit odd that the opponents of this
bill, who are supporters of having issues decided by direct
vote, would be opposed to allowng the voters to decide this
i ssue.” In response to a request for clarification, M. Ruaro
indicated the bill had been heard late in the previous session
[ 2001] .

Number 0600
CHAIR COGHI LL stated his view that part of the "urban-rural
di vide" could be answered by allowng this type of a division

for petition gathering.

Nunmber 0662

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- February 7, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE JAMES said she supports this constitutional
anendnent [proposed by HIR 25] and was present when argunents
were being nade that "this was just really eating into the

ability of people to have an initiative." She nentioned
[ Al aska' s] scattered popul ation. She said she was surprised by
the list of all the other states w th geographic issues. She
mentioned the attenpts made to find out how all the various
pl aces around the state feel about issues. She said she has
al ways described Alaska as five separate states - not only
geographically, but also philosophically. It is wunfair, she
opi ned, when nost of the population is in the Railbelt, to
expect that the Railbelt will carry everything and "no one else
has a voice." She indicated that [areas with fewer voters] only

get to vote if the initiative is on the ballot, and "never get
their voice in there in the beginning."

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES nentioned people who do have noney. She
said she thought Iegislation had been passed that "makes these
people tell where they get their noney when they' re supporting
an initiative." She said that had been another problem in the
past, because people didn't really have to say where their noney
was com ng fromwhen they were supporting an initiative.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES al so nentioned a couple of initiatives that
she'd found painful and didn't think necessarily represented
rural Al aska: the initiative regarding [wolf] snaring, which
was finally "won,” but with a lot of noney and cooperative
efforts of people with interests in hunting and fishing; and the
initiative regarding billboards, which she said she thought was
fraught with what she consi dered m sl eadi ng adverti si ng.

Nunmber 0936

CHAIR COGHI LL agreed that initiatives do beconme an advertising
I Ssue. He nentioned trying to "get sonmething up on an issue
that everybody can weigh in on" and have sonething that is
publicly driven.

Number 0958
REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD said he feels that if people don't agree

with an issue that conmes up in the referendum process, this wll
limt debate and getting those issues out in the open, because

it will be rnmuch nore difficult to get those issues on the
bal | ot .
Nunmber 1054

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- February 7, 2002



SUSAN  SCHRADER, Conservation Advocate, Al aska Conservation
Voters (ACV), told the conmttee ACV doesn't believe either [HB
213] or the proposed anendnent to the constitution [HIR 25] w |

achieve its desired goals. She cautioned, as Representative
Crawford had pointed out, t hat it wuld be "a mrked
di sincentive" for people to bring initiatives. She suggested

that rather than creating a nore equitable system this is an
attenpt to |limt the initiative process. Ms. Schrader said she
thought [the commttee] would find that voters don't want the
initiative process limted.

Number 1140

MS. SCHRADER referred to the results of a poll conducted by Ivan
Moore [included in the commttee packet and entitled, "Executive
Summary"] . The basic question during the poll, she explained,
was whether the people polled wanted the initiative process
limted in any way. She reported that 75 percent responded no.

M5. SCHRADER said she thinks the results coincide with the
results seen on Ballot Measure 1 last year, a neasure to limt
the initiative process [by] restricting its use for any wildlife
i ssues. She noted the follow ng percentages of voters who voted
against [Ballot Measure 1] and which district they were in: 76
percent in District 2, 71 percent in District 6, 66 percent in
District 22, 56 percent in District 30, and 59 percent in
District 32.

MS. SCHRADER suggested this isn't a matter of whether to kill
wol ves or not; rather, it is, "Do the citizens of Al aska want
their initiative process limted, which is exactly what this
bill does.” Statewi de, taking into account all of the rural
districts, Ballot Measure 1 was defeated by 65 percent of the
voters, she said. She predicted this neasure would be turned
down again, should it get to the ballot.

Number 1249
MS. SCHRADER said she thinks that sends a clear nessage to the
| egislature that "this is perceived by nost voters as our check
on all of you."™ She continued as follows:

It is our way of creating sone laws that we have

asked, perhaps in the past, the legislature to take up
and they have preferred not to. It is our check under

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- February 7, 2002



the referendum process to perhaps overturn |aws that
we have not been happy with the | egislature naking.

As you all know, we do have the right, in the couple
years after [a] ballot nmeasure has passed, to rescind
it or alter it. So, it's a part of the checks and
bal ance[ s] .

And the information that | tried to present to you

today sinply shows that nost Al askans want to protect
the initiative process, and |I think nost Al askans w ||
view these neasures ... very directly, as a effort to
limt their process.

Number 1330

RANDY REUDRI CH, testifying via teleconference, specified that as
an individual, he believes all Alaskans participate in all
phases of the state's activities. He said he tends to think
this particular bill mght enhance the participation of al

Al askans in the initiative and referendum process, "rather than
allowing it to be, essentially, a very limted nunber of people,
in a few stores, signing petitions."

MR. REUDRICH said he'd initially been going to speak on behalf
of the Republican Party, as chairman, but noted that the
Republican Party has never taken a specific stance on
initiatives. He clarified that "there is no prior, recent, or
| ongstanding indication of a Republican Party's position on
initiatives, nor this particular nmatter."

Nunber 1440

CHAIR COGHI LL, referring to the 7-percent issue on page 2, line
1, and again in Section C, lines 14-16, asked [M. Ruaro] how he
arrived at that nunber.

Number 1500

MR. RUARO said he thinks what occurred was that the sponsor
[ rade conparisons with] sonme of the other states [that have
geographic requirenents] and the nunber is "about in the mddle
of what's required in other states.” He said he believes "it
goes as high as 11 percent in Wom ng, and then ranges downward
to 5 percent.”

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- February 7, 2002



CHAIR COGHI LL surmsed that the commttee needs to look - as

part of the policy discussion - at whether the nunber wll be
representative of a particular area, "because once they get over
that bar, then it noves forward." He said, "Wen we get to the
constitutionality of it, I'm going to kind of force that

di scussion into the [House] Judiciary [Standing] Commttee."
Nunber 1570

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES asked Gail Fenum ai what the existing rules
are.

GAIL FENUM AI, Election Program Specialist, Central Ofice,
Division of Elections, Ofice of the Lieutenant Governor,
explained that the current initiative procedure requires 10
percent of +the total votes cast in the preceding general
el ection, from two-thirds of the House districts; there is no
percentage per House district. She noted that two-thirds of the
House districts equates to 27 House districts that need to be
repr esent ed. In response to a further guestion from
Representative Janes, she said:

There are three people who conplete an initiative
application [and] are known as the initiative
commttee - the ‘three primary sponsors of the
committee. They are then responsible for getting
that original hundred signatures, which is required to
get an application certified, which then leads to
getting the booklet [printed] and being able to gather
si gnat ur es. And the prime sponsors gather additiona
sponsors to be petition circul ators. But there is no
requirenent for a circulator to be in every House
district. The petition booklets are given to whoever
is interested in circulating the petition.

Number 1692

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES referred to last year's discussion and
menti oned a conparison of how many rural districts and urban
districts there are. She recalled that using two-thirds could
alnost elimnate all rural districts, whereas using three-
quarters would include at |east a few Poi nting out Al aska's
uni queness, she nentioned that the people in the Anchorage area
conprise half of the voters in the state and have fewer
districts; therefore, it is easy to get around Anchorage to "get
two-thirds,"” whereas many rural areas are m ssed.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 9- February 7, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE JAMES suggested that nmany of those people nay not
know much about an initiative before going to the polls, because
nobody's been talking about it and none of their neighbors are

i nvol ved. "And that's the whole issue that | think that
Representative WIlliams is trying to address, and why |
supported this,"” she renmarked. Representative Janes asked if

Ms. Fenum ai believes this [proposed |egislation] would indeed
di scourage the initiative process.

Nunber 1787

M5. FENUM Al noted that it was probably outside the scope of her
authority to conment on that. She then referred to a printout
showing how nmany signatures, per district, prior initiative
petitions have garnered; she offered to nake it available to the
commttee. She suggested it mght answer sone of Representative
Janmes's questions regarding where the signatures cone from
because the printout identifies Districts 1 through 40 and how
many signatures were gathered on each initiative, "as they were
processed by the division," up through |ast vyear. She noted
that statistics for this year were not avail abl e.

Nunber 1947

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked Ms. Fenumiai to confirm that 27
districts were involved in the | ast referendum

MS5. FENUM Al clarified that there needs to be at Ileast a
signature from 27 of the 40 districts to make up the 10 percent
st at ewi de.

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON said changing from two-thirds to three-

fourths mght sound like a lot, but would only be three nore
districts; she noted that it would not take a "horrendous effort
to get that done." She added that she thought having input from

three nore areas woul d be wonderf ul
Number 2016

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD offered that three nore districts is not
such a problem however, having 7 percent of the people in that
district [who have voted in the preceding general election] is a
problem He continued, "Had we had to clear this hurdle to get
the initiative on the ballot for the m ninum wage, it would have
been much nore difficult and nuch nore expensive for us to get
that." He postulated that this [proposed legislation] is just a
way to keep issues off the ballot that the |egislature has not

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- February 7, 2002



seen fit to discuss or pass. He cited the m nimum wage
initiative as an exanpl e.

Nunber 2062

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES stated that she took [Representative
Crawford' s remarks] as "a negative to ny interest in this." She
said she has "no interest in necessarily keeping things off the
ball ot." She said her intent was that all of the people of
Al aska have the opportunity to participate.

Nunber 2100

MR. RUARO alluded to the mninumwage initiative. He said it
| ooked as though 6,100 signatures a nonth had been collected,
beginning April, 2001 - a "pretty good rate in a short period of
time." Although [HB 213] might require those involved to spend
additional tinme and effort, M. Ruaro said he does not think it
woul d block the initiative frommaking it onto the ballot.

Nunber 2142

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD responded, "W did get a |lot of
signatures, because a |lot of people worked really hard to get
those signatures; | spent a lot of time out collecting
signatures for that m nimumwage petition." He noted that in
Wom ng, for exanple, one can take a canper or notor honme and
"go park in front of their neighborhood, or conmunity store" to
get the signatures. Having to go to the Aleutians, to Barrow,
and then to Ketchikan and Wangell is much nore difficult. He
added, "We would have had to have gone to nuch nore expense to
get sonmething like the mnimmwage petition on the ballot.
That's the difference.”

Nunber 2195

CHAIR COGH LL recognized that Representative Crawford had a
conflict in this, since he did participate in an initiative, and
that he was well aware of the issue. He asked, "At what point
do those who are hard to reach get disenfranchised from the
process?" He said, "W take great expense getting voting
machines to them W should try to make sure that they're
included in the discussion in things that cone up for referendum
or initiative." He asked nenbers what they would like to do
with [the bill].

Number 2242

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- February 7, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE FATE indicated he would |like to nove HB 213 [out
of commttee with individual recommendations and the attached
zero fiscal note].

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL, hearing no objection, announced that HB
213 was noved out of the House State Affairs Standing Commttee.

HIJIR 25- CONST AM | NI TI ATl VE/ REFERENDUM PETI TI ONS

[ Cont ai ns di scussion of HB 213]
Nunmber 2263

CHAI R COGHI LL announced the next order of business, HOUSE JO NT
RESOLUTI ON NO. 25, Proposing an anendnent to the Constitution of
the State of Alaska relating to initiative and referendum
petitions.

Nunber 2275

RANDY RUARO Staff to Representative Wlliam K. "Bill" WIIians,
Alaska State Legislature, presented HIR 25 on behalf of
Representative WIIlians, sponsor. M. Ruaro described HIR 25 as
conpanion legislation to HB 213. He explained that a

constitutional anmendnent would be required in order to change
the language relating to initiatives. He said, "HIR [25] tracks
HB 213 in the changes that it nmakes to the initiative process.”

Number 2300

CHAIR COGHI LL noted that [page 1] line 8 of the resolution says
"at least ten per cent of those who voted', whereas HB 213
i ndi cates 7 percent.

MR. RUARO said he thought it was probably a drafting error. He
stated his belief that the 10 percent was "prior |anguage."

Number 2332

GAIL FENUM AI, Election Program Specialist, Central Ofice,
Division of Elections, Ofice of the Lieutenant Governor,
clarified that 10 percent is the total nunber of signatures
t hroughout the whole state; that would not change. The change,
she specified, is the 7 percent per district. Regardi ng the
fiscal note, she said it is the division's standard fiscal note

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- February 7, 2002



for ballot neasures; it represents the cost of putting a page in
the official election panphlet.

Nunber 2406

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES asked what 7 percent of the nobst recent
el ection woul d be for each district.

MR RUARO said he did not know.

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES offered his belief that those figures are
i nportant to the present discussion.

Number 2450

M5. FENUM Al indicated she had just conpleted a spreadsheet that
shows the nunber of votes per House district in the 2000 genera
election and what 7 percent of that would equate to. She
offered a copy to the committee.

Nunber 2457

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES i ndi cated she thought it was approxi mately
15,675 residents, but that nunber would not [represent] all
voters, and "they don't all vote.”" She clarified that the issue
isinregard to people who vote.

Number 2510

CHAIR COGHI LL asked [Ms. Fenumiai] and M. Ruaro if they had
anything further to add to the discussion; he commented that as
he understood it, it would be pretty nuch the sanme testinony [as
t hey had given for HB 213].

MR RUARO said, "That's correct."”
Nunber 2540

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES noted that some people may not know what
district they are in. He then said, "I actually think this is a
real good idea, and | support it. But this just seens like this
is really going to be quite cunbersome to actually getting
signatures.” He explained that a person could think he/she had
collected so many signatures in one district, when those
signatures were actually from another district.

Number 2581

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- February 7, 2002



MR. RUARO referred to his own House district and said he wasn't
famliar with the problemreferred to by Representative Hayes.

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES offered that in the nore popul ated areas -
Anchorage, the Matanuska Valley, and Fairbanks, for exanple -
"folks are all over." Logistically, he said, "this is a |ot
harder than | was giving it credit for."

MR. RUARO noted that the person gathering signatures would have
to ask where [the signer] is from He said substantially nore
signatures than are required are often collected, which provides
"sone cover" when gathering initiatives.

Nunmber 2658

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON noted that 15 of the 24 referenduns in her
district [of Wangell] had signatures fewer than 100, with many
rangi ng between 27-56; she said she was shocked by that. She
said she thinks if the effort were nmade to conme down to her
district, then it would have a better say. She noted that 7
percent of all her constituents would be 500. Furt her nore,
[Wangell] is not well represented in regard to petitions.

Number 2722

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES, regarding Representative Hayes' concern,
reiterated M. Ruaro's coment that extra signatures are
obtained in case of soneone's being listed twice, or not even
being registered [to vote], for exanple. She suggested the
petition gatherer could ask the person where that person votes
and then look it up on a list, to see which district that person
[lives] in.

Nunber 2782
M5. FENUM Al expl ai ned how the division verifies signatures:

Currently, when the booklets are filed wth the

division and it appears ... on the initial count that
t hey have enough signatures to qualify, the division
goes page by page, line by line, and enters the

information as it's entered into the petition booklet:
social security nunber, if the voter provided that; a
voter nunber; the nane of the voter; residence
address; and city of the voter is necessary.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- February 7, 2002



There's no prelimnary determnation nade as to what
district they're from Each night we run a batch
program that qualifies signatures based on the
information entered for that day and the next day; we
get a breakdown.

M5. FENUM Al, in response to a question by Chair Coghill, said
currently a residence [address] is required. She said the
petition commttee would probably need to mnake sonme other
procedural changes, such as asking, "Wo's your representative,"”
which would tell which district the person [lives] in. She
referred to the sheets regarding the nunber of signatures per
district and said:

If you looked in, I"mjust going to say, Districts 10-
28, ... they're not equal; ... they vary just a little
bit. And | know Anchorage is a big concern, because
Anchorage contains Districts 10 through - and Mat-Su -
28. And so, you don't know who you're getting
signatures from But it appears that ... they get a
fair representation in all the petitions that are
done.
Number 2870

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS asked Ms. Fenum ai if she was inplying or
saying that the figures are run regularly, so that people
collecting signatures will know when they are short and won't be
"bl i ndsi ded" when they turn in their papers and have m ssed one
district, for exanple.

M5. FENUM Al answered no. She said the signature verification
is not done until the petition is filed with the division;
therefore, [the people collecting the signatures] don't know if
they are short [on signatures] wthin a particular district
unti | [the division] is finished wth its wverification.
Hi storically, she noted, there has always been at |east one
signature fromall 40 districts, and no petition has mssed the
27 out of 40 districts.

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS offered his understanding that the new
t hreshol d woul d be a percentage of each district.

MS. FENUM Al concurr ed.

Nunber 2914

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -15- February 7, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE FATE asked if there is any editorial oversight on
the wording of a petition with regard to its purpose.

M5. FENUM Al answered that there are paraneters in statute
regarding what an initiative cannot do and paraneters that say
it has to follow the form of a proposed bill. Before the
application gets to the petition-booklet phase, it is reviewed
by the Department of Law to determ ne whether it neets the scope
of the statute.

REPRESENTATI VE FATE clarified his prior question. He defined
editorial oversight as l|looking at the way that words are put
together so that the correct meani ng cones out.

M5. FENUM Al said to her know edge, that is not done. She
added, "There is a joint effort done when the ballot summary is
proposed to put in the initiative petition booklets, and when
the ballot |anguage is drafted for the ballot, as well."

Number 2980

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES asked if the ballot |anguage conmes fromthe
Di vision of Elections.

M5. FENUM Al answered that that [language] is drafted through
the Ofice of the Lieutenant Governor, with the assistance of
the attorney general.

TAPE 02-07, SIDE B
Number 2990

[ Representative Janes's question was not recorded during the
t ape change. ]

M5. FENUMAI replied, "That, perhaps, is wth the ballot

| anguage itself. I think nmaybe Representative Fate was talking
about the whole proposed bill." She nentioned the drafting of
the bill and nmaking sure "it doesn't go ... into territory

that's restricted by the initiative process.”

Number 2970

CHAIR COGHI LL said it is also true that the |anguage which ends
up on the ballot becones significant "on both sides,” to nake

certain that it is not m sleading.

Nunmber 2958

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- February 7, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE JAMES asked if the |anguage of the petition has
to be approved after obtaining the sponsors, but prior to the
acqui sition of the signatures.

M5. FENUM Al said that is correct; it is one requirenent of the
application that the proposed bill be attached. The proposed
bill is reviewed to be certain it doesn't "go into sonething
that the initiative can't do."

Number 2928

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD offered his belief that there would be
constitutional issues with any type of editorial oversight that
tanpers wth the drafter's original petition |anguage, if that
wording was legal to begin with. He said the originator of the
bal | ot woul d have worked to get certain | anguage on the ballot.

CHAIR COGHILL agreed, but said that "political spin is always
finding a place to | and."

Nunmber 2873

REPRESENTATI VE FATE said usually "editorial oversight" isn't to
change the intent or neaning of the original writing;
conversely, it is to nmake sure the intent is clear. He referred
to the aforenentioned remarks of Representative Janes that the
| egislature is an exanple of one area where editorial oversight
is at least inplied.

Nunmber 2835

CHAIR COGHI LL stated his belief that the Division of Elections
has "gone overboard,” not only regarding el ection panphlets, but

also in mking sure that "it does fit the petition" and
therefore isn't a problem He suggested there <could be
di scussion regarding the |ieutenant governor and political

power, because that is a political office.
Nunber 2784

MR. RUARO said he thought the discussion had been a good one
with admtted pros and cons. He offered the sponsor's belief
that the better policy choice is to have sone statew de support
for the initiative process.

Nunmber 2768

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- February 7, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE JAMES commented that 7 percent from each district
is really the big change. She said she didn't know what the
proper percentage was, but suggested it could be addressed in
the House Judiciary Standing Committee. She remarked, "I think
that if there's anything we need to ook at to see if we've got
the right nunber, it's the 7 percent; but | can tell you that |
am not happy to have it just be one, at this tine." She said it
should be sonmething relevant to the total nunber of available
voters in a district.

Nunber 2709

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD indicated that for him there is sone
silver lining in this Ilegislation. He noted that he has not
li ked some petitions that have been put on the ballot in the
past. He said:

This would, | believe, keep sonebody |ike Uwne Kal enka
from putting sone of the things that he puts on the
ballot; [it] would Kkeep his initiatives off the

bal | ot . So, that's not so bad, but | really believe
that he has the right to put those things on the
bal |l ot, because | believe that | have the right to put
sonething that |I like on the ballot. So, | wanted to

fight this norning for his right to do it, because
it's also ny right.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFCORD said he believed he'd used "this issue"
fairly effectively in the |last election, when, he indicated, the

Republican majority was trying to |limt people's right to
petition regarding the wildlife initiative. He said he believes
"this is one of those briar patches that | mght be able to use

again in the next election.”

CHAIR COGHI LL told Representative Crawford he was veering off
t he topic.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD concl uded, "Well, this is a briar patch
that you m ght not want to throw ne in."

Number 2631

REPRESENTATI VE FATE objected and stated, "This is a forum for a
policy on an issue; it's not a debate on canpaigns.”

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- February 7, 2002



CHAIR COGH LL said that unfortunately when any issue is
di scussed, canpaign is an "underriding" issue; therefore, he
said he wanted to allow sonme latitude for that discussion. He
indicated that it was certainly not his intention to allow the
House State Affairs Standing Conmmttee [be wused] to inmpugn
anybody who is a petition gatherer. He asked, "How do we nake
the process nore representative of the people of Al aska?"

Nunmber 2598

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES said she thinks people have the right to
petition, and that she was not there to take that right away.
The problem she stated, is that there nust be cosigners. She
noted two [considerations in getting an issue on the ballot]:
first, ascertain that enough people want the 1issue on the

ballot; and second, ensure that [voters faced wth the
initiative] are fully informed of the issue. She opined that it
does not matter where sonebody Iives. Everyone needs to have
the sanme opportunity to participate and to be well inforned.

She stated her belief that "we" have been |eaving sone people
out .

Nunber 2515

CHAI R COGHI LL said the whol e discussion regarding representative
gover nnent and nmgjority rule nust work hand in hand.
Furthernore, Chair Coghill said he thinks "this is probably a
good di scussion on that."

Number 2499
REPRESENTATI VE FATE noved to report [HIR 25] out of conmttee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal

not e.

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES obj ect ed.

Nunber 2463
A roll <call vote was taken. Representatives Fate, Janes,
Stevens, WIson, and Coghill voted to nove the resolution from

commttee. Representatives Crawford and Hayes voted against it.
Therefore, HIR 25 was noved out of the House State Affairs
Standi ng Conmttee by a vote of 5-2.

HB 314-PFD ELIG BILITY FOR PEACE CORP VOLUNTEERS

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- February 7, 2002



Nunber 2400

CHAI R COGHI LL brought before the commttee HOUSE BILL NO 314,
"An Act relating to service in the peace corps as an allowable
absence fromthe state for purposes of eligibility for permanent
fund dividends; and providing for an effective date."

CHAIR COGHILL clarified that the sponsor of the bill
[ Representative MQ@iire] could not be present; therefore, he
asked that testinony be heard.

Number 2380

DAVID MOORE, Director, United Canpus Mnistry (UCM, University
of Al aska Fairbanks, testified via teleconference on behalf of
the 26 Peace Corps volunteers from Al aska. He told the
committee he was testifying specifically for Denny and Lisa
Wells, tw people involved in UCM between 1994-1998 and
currently serving the Peace Corps in Thail and.

MR. MOORE said he'd recently read an article in the Fairbanks
Daily News-Mner about Peace Corps volunteers acting as
di pl omat s. He commented that he'd found it interesting that in

the article US. Senators, as well as both Republican and
Denocrat Representatives, talked about the benefit of Peace
Corps volunteering - "how it had hel ped them as well as ... the

i ndividuals they had worked with in their country, as well as
t he good things they had brought back to our country."”

MR MOORE noted that the article also said nore than 7,000
vol unteers are deployed today. He comented that the word
"deploy" is wusually used as a mlitary term He indicated
President [George W] Bush wants to double that nunber and
nearly double the Peace Corps budget over the next five years,
from $275 million to $475 mllion. M. More stated his belief
that it is inportant in [today's] world that Al aska support its
residents who want to show the world "that we are good-natured."

MR. MOORE stated that "the Peace Corps is entirely made up of
voluntary governnent service, just like the mlitary." He
opined that M. and Ms. Wlls are both "sharp" individuals who
chose to serve the nation to make the world a better place,
rat her than [nmake noney] in a corporate world. [The next couple
of sentences were indiscernible.]

CHAIR COGH LL asked the wtness to nmve closer to the
m cr ophone.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- February 7, 2002



MR MOORE said M. and Ms. Wells have chosen to serve the state
by corresponding wth the second-grade class at Hunt er

El ementary School in Fairbanks. He stated his certainty that
when they returned, they would share the gifts they received
from the Thai people: the gqgift of <culture, the gift of
understanding, and the gift of information. He said he had

personal ly benefited fromthe stories, know edge, and insight of
Peace Corps volunteers; he shared his belief that many have
benefited from the Peace Corps program both abroad and in
Al aska. He concluded, "I believe that we should show our
resi dent Peace Corps volunteers our support by sharing 8 cents
api ece, so that they m ght have their rightful dividend."

CHAIR COGHI LL asked M. Mwore to send his testinony in witing
to the comm ttee.

Nunber 2245

FRANCI S McLAUGHLI N, Peace Corps Vol unteer, testifying via
tel econference, read from his testinony [included in the
commttee packet], as follows:

| would |ike thank House nenbers for Ilistening to
public coment about HB 314, which wll hopefully
reinclude Peace Corps volunteers for receiving the
[ permanent fund] divi dend.

| was born in Fairbanks Menorial Hospital in 1977 and
have been a Fairbanks resident all ny life. After
graduating from college, | applied and was accepted to
the U S. Peace Corps. | did not find out where the
Peace Corps would send nme until three nonths before |
left for ny post. The Peace Corps placed ne in a town
in the Central H ghlands of Guatemala. | was the only
non- Guat emal an and Engli sh-speaking person living in
Santiago Sacatepaquez. | was the only person that the
people of that town wll probably ever neet from
Al aska. | lived in a one-room house with a tin roof.
| shared nmy bathroom - a latrine - with sixteen other
peopl e. My town only had access to water for about
three hours a day.

While living in Santiago, | successfully organized the
community to build a tree nursery, which has since
produced over 8,000 new avocado trees for the town.
All of the trees ... are planted in fields surrounding

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- February 7, 2002



the town, and some are already producing fruit. I
lived as the people did and worked with them side by
si de. It was a very rewardi ng experience for ne, and
| hope that the work | did will help the people of
Sant i ago. | know that | wll never forget them and
that they will never forget ... ne.

During ny first year in Santiago, | joined the town
soccer team My nei ghbor and fellow teanmate thought
that it would be funny if he told the people in town
that | played professional soccer in the US., even
though it wasn't true. Vell, the entire town showed
up at our first soccer game to see if | was really as
good ... as they had said. My reputation was
confirmed when | scored a left-footed shot, placed
perfectly in the lower-right corner of the goal,
within the first five mnutes of the first gane.
Unfortunately, that was the only goal | scored the
entire season

| amsad to say that when | left Fairbanks to becone a
Peace Corps volunteer in Guatemala, | was penalized.
While serving two years and four nonths in Guatenmal a,
| was ineligible to receive the [permanent fund]
dividend for two years in a row. | worked very hard
while working with the Peace Corps to be a good
representative of ny famly, ny comunity, mnmy state

and nmy country, and to serve rural Mayan people in
Sant i ago. | should not have lost ny dividend for
bei ng a Peace Corps vol unteer.

Everyone can conme up wth a good reason why they need
the dividend, and I am no different. | have four

years of Al aska student loans to pay off, and the
interest on these loans has continued to accrue while

| was a volunteer. | was allowed to defer the
principle of ny Al aska student |oan, but not the
i nterest. So, mnmy debt has grown while | was working

and earning next to nothing as a Peace Corps vol unteer
in Guatenal a.

Wy are the Peace Corps volunteers and dynpic
athletes from Al aska penalized for representing their
state while working abroad? | know that Al askans, ny
nei ghbors here in Fairbanks and el sewhere throughout
the state, value public service and do not believe
that Peace Corps volunteers and OQynpic athletes

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- February 7, 2002



should be penalized for the job that ... we do. I
believe that Peace Corps volunteers and Qynpic
athletes should receive the dividend, and those who

have already been stripped of the dividend, |ike ne,
shoul d be given it back, retroactively. The anmount of
noney that this would be is very small, because there

are very few Peace Corps volunteers and dynpic
athletes from Al aska. Believe ne, they are deserving
of the dividend and need it, also.

MR. MLAUGHLIN said he supported HB 314, but would like to see
AQynmpic athletes and - as soon as the President defines them -
Freedom Corps volunteers [included] as well. He added that he
woul d |i ke Peace Corps volunteers and A ynpic athletes who were
ineligible over the past three years to receive [retroactive
paynent of those m ssed pernanent fund dividends].

Nunber 1994

CHAIR COGH LL requested that the wtness fax his witten
testi nony. He said M. MlLaughlin brings an interesting point
to the conmttee regarding the need to [include] nore people; he
said M. MlLaughlin had nmade a conpelling argunent "for one
ot her group.™ He noted that the bill would be discussed when
Representative MQ@iire, sponsor, was avail able. [HB 314 was
hel d over.]

ADJ QURNVENT
Nunber 1938
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at 9:16
a. m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -23- February 7, 2002



